
Parkside  Station Approach  Burton Street  Melton Mowbray  Leicestershire  LE13 1GH
01664 502502 * contactus@melton.gov.uk * www.melton.gov.uk * @MeltonBC

Agenda Rural Capital of Food

Meeting name Meeting of the People Committee
Date Tuesday, 19 March 2019
Start time 6.30 pm
Venue Parkside, Station Approach, Burton Street, 

Melton Mowbray, LE13 1GH
Other information This meeting is open to the public

Members of the People Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to 
consider the following items of business.

Edd de Coverly
Chief Executive

Membership

Councillors A. Pearson (Chair) R. de Burle (Vice-Chair)
T. Beaken P. Faulkner
M. Graham S. Lumley
P. Posnett M. Sheldon
D. Wright

Quorum: 4 Councillors

Meeting enquiries Helen Ainge
Direct Dial
Email hainge@melton.gov.uk
Agenda despatched Monday, 11 March 2019

Public Document Pack



Page 2 of 3

No. Item Page No.

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.  MINUTES
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 14 November 2018.

1 - 6

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members to declare any interest as appropriate in respect of items to 
be considered at this meeting.

7 - 8

4.  CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING TO 31 JANUARY 2019
The Director for Corporate Services to submit a report to update the 
Committee on the progress of schemes within Capital Programme to 
31 January 2019.

9 - 12

5.  BUDGET MONITORING APRIL-DECEMBER 2018
The Director for Corporate Services to provide a report for 
information on actual expenditure and income incurred on this 
Committee’s services compared to the latest approved budget for 
the period 1st April 2018 to 31st December 2018. Note this is based 
on the old CSA service structure as it has been previously agreed 
that the financial monitoring reports for 2018/19 will be reviewed on 
this basis. Moving forward the 2019/20 budget setting process has 
been based on the new People priorities.

13 - 20

6.  BOTTESFORD YOUTH CLUB PETITION
The Deputy Chief Executive to provide a report for Members to 
consider the Bottesford Youth Club (BYC) petition, received initially 
at Full Council on 13th February2019, which has been referred to 
this Committee in accordance with Procedure Rule 24.

21 - 52

7.  COMMUNITY GRANT REVIEW
The Deputy Chief Executive to provide a report to introduce to 
Members the concept of adopting a new policy for considering 
Community Grants in future years.

53 - 56

8.  CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU
The Deputy Chief Executive to provide a report to update members 
regarding the future relationship between Melton Borough Council 
and the Melton branch of the Citizens Advice Bureau in light of the 
recent reduction to the annual MBC contribution through the 
Community Grants Budget.

57 - 60

9.  URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any other items that the Chair considers urgent.



Page 3 of 3



This page is intentionally left blank



1 People Committee : 141118

Minutes Rural Capital of Food 

Present:

Chair Councillor A. Pearson (Chair)

Councillors R. de Burle (Vice-Chair) T. Beaken
M. Blase P. Faulkner
M. Graham M. Sheldon
D. Wright

Observers

Officers Deputy Chief Executive
Administration Assistant (HA)
Learning, Skills and Healthier Communities Manager
Corporate Services Manager
Housing, Welfare and Safer Communities Manager

Meeting name People Committee
Date Wednesday, 14 November 2018
Start time 6.30 pm
Venue Parkside, Station Approach, Burton Street, 

Melton Mowbray, LE13 1GH

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



2 People Committee : 141118

Minute 
No.

Minute

18 Apologies for Absence
Apologies were received from Councillor Posnett.

19 Minutes of previous meeting of 120918
The minutes of the meeting held on 12th September 2018 were confirmed and 
authorised to be signed by the chair.

20 Declarations of interest
Councillor Pearson declared an interest as a County Councillor.

21 Capital Programme Monitoring to 30 September 2018 and Capital Programme 
2018-2023
The Corporate Services Manager provided a report to:

To update the Committee on the progress of schemes within the Capital 
Programme to 30 September 2018

To determine the Committee’s Capital Programme for 2018-2023 based on a 
review of spending in the current year’s programme and schemes included in the 
programme for later years.

Reference was made to 3.1.2 which shows actual expenditure to 30 September 
2018 from the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) as £0, Members were advised that 
MBC is still waiting for confirmation on expenditure to date from the Lightbulb Team 
at Blaby District Council who are undertaking the work.  MBC are pushing for this 
information and it will be referred back to the Committee once it is received.  
Councillor Pearson advised that a report has now been prepared by the Health and 
Wellbeing Board and a copy can be provided for Members at the next meeting.

Reference was made to 3.2.2 and Appendix C in respect to customer centric 
systems review at a cost of £80k.  The current CRM is no longer supported, cannot 
be updated or amended and the My Account system will cease to be supported 
after March 2020.  The review will look at the capacity and capability of our 
systems.  The £80k is the average cost of such a system and Members are not 
being asked to agree to this cost at this stage as it is a figure being put forward in a 
business case to start the process.  Once further information and more confirmed 
costs are sourced, it will be referred back to Committee for discussion.

Reference was made to 3.2.3 that the current CCTV provision is under review as 
the cameras are nearing the end of life.

Page 2



3 People Committee : 141118

RESOLVED that:

1. The Committee notes the progress made on the capital schemes as 
was attached at Appendix A

2. The Committee approved the revised Capital Programme for 2018-2023 
as was attached at Appendix B.

22 Customer Complaints Policy
The Housing, Welfare and Safer Communities Manager provided a report to:

Ask the Committee to adopt a revised ‘Customer Complaints Policy’ to include the 
proposed changes to respond timescales, escalation routes and complaint 
methods.

To ask the Committee to adopt, as part of the overall Policy, a new ‘Unreasonably 
Persistent and Vexatious Customer Policy’, to include the definition and 
subsequent management of such customers.

Reference was made to 3.4  - expected response times.  It was discussed that front 
line staff are to be trained give them the opportunity and empowerment to resolve 
complaints as they are received, however if this is not satisfactory the complaint 
moves to Stage 1 where a Service Team Leader would investigate and reply within 
the new timescale of 15 working days.  If the customer is still dissatisfied the 
complaints moves to Stage 2 where a review will be made by an appropriate senior 
officer and then approved and signed by the relevant Director or Assistant Director, 
or, depending on the circumstances, might involve a review by a senior officer 
independent of the service, again within 15 working days.  In the event the 
customer is still dissatisfied, they can submit a written complaint to the 
ombudsmen.

Reference was made to Appendix 3 – Unreasonably Persistent or Vexatious 
Customer Policy. Section 4 of the Policy provides a definition of an unreasonably 
persistent or vexatious complainant. 

It was agreed that a copy of the Key Performance Indicators (KPI) which are 
produced quarterly and taken to SMT can be brought to future meetings for further 
discussion and for Members to see trends.

RESOLVED that:

1. The Committee approved the adoption of the ‘Customer Complaints 
Policy’ as was set out in Appendix 2 with immediate effect.

2. The Committee approved the adoption of the ‘Unreasonably Persistent 
and Vexatious Customer Policy’ as was set out in Appendix 3 with 
immediate effect.

3. The Committee approved the recommendation that the Deputy Chief 
Executive will have the authority to make amendments to the Policies 
with the Chairman of the People Committee.

Page 3



4 People Committee : 141118

23 Community  Safety Update
The Learning, Skills and Healthier Communities Manager provided a report to:

Update Members regarding the response to recent community safety issues and 
provide information relating to a review of CCTV provision across the Borough. To 
also outline the updated ‘Community Safety Partnership Action Plan’ which 
provides operational direction to the existing ‘Community Safety Partnership 
Strategic Plan (2017 – 2020).

Attention was given to Appendix 1 which shows the 5 main priorities the updated 
action plan focuses on: Crime and antisocial behaviour; Predict, Prepare and 
Prevent; Supporting Vulnerability; Horizon Scanning and Community Focus.

The effectiveness of the partnership arrangements in place as a result of the 
‘Community Safety Partnership’ and the introduction of the neighbourhood support 
officers working alongside the tenancy management and antisocial behaviour 
officers has resulted in quick response times to recent high profile incidents. It is 
important to have early intervention to prevent safeguarding issues at a later stage. 

The Committee was advised that the current CCTV system throughout the town is 
in need of an update, the quality of images is poor and maintenance and upkeep 
amount to £8520 per year. A CCTV review will be carried out by the ‘Community 
Safety Partnership’ led by the Council and a business case will be brought to this 
Committee early in 2019. 

RESOLVED that:

1. The Committee approved the proposed ‘Community Safety Partnership 
Action Plan’ as set out in Appendix 1.

2. The Committee authorised the initial review of CCTV provision across 
the Borough which is to be carried out by members of the ‘Community 
Safety Partnership’.

24 Annual Report on Equality and Diversity
The Learning, Skills and Healthier Communities Manager provided a report to:

Update the Committee on the progress made by the Council to embed ‘Equality 
and Diversity’ within service, policy development and delivery; work undertaken to 
meet our public sector equality duty as required by equality legislation and deliver 
services which are accessible and meet the needs of Melton’s residents.

Reference was made to 3.4 showing the 4 equality objectives for the period 2016-
2020.

Attention was drawn to 5.1 with a amendment to the opening line, the line should 
read:

Page 4



5 People Committee : 141118

The Council has an annual budget of £4,000 to help with the associated 
resourcing for Equality and Diversity. Support is provided through an 
agreement with an Equality and Diversity specialist….

Reference was made to 5.2 advising that the Single Equalities Scheme, Action 
Plan and set of Equality Objectives are reviewed every four years, the next one due 
2020.

RESOLVED that:

1. The Committee noted the progress made in meeting the Council’s 
equalities duties and commitments as outlined in the report.

25 Locality Based Services – Utilisation of Community Centres
The Learning, Skills and Healthier Communities Manager provided a report to:

Inform the Committee on potential ways forward for usage of the three Community 
Centres that are located in three of the Council’s four ‘Priority Neighbourhoods’, 
following the completion by Leicestershire County Council (LCC) of their ‘Early Help 
Review’.

Reference was made to 3.5 that the Neighbourhood Support Service has led to 
increased engagement with priority areas, however, if we could base our services 
from the community centres it will enhance the impact the service can have upon 
residents.  3.6 lists additional suggestions to further increase and enhance ongoing 
development of trailblazing developments that support our commitment.

Reference was made to 5.1 highlighting the loss of £34k towards the running costs 
of the centre. It is expected that the Council can continue to operate as it is not 
anticipated that the shortfall will be in the next financial year as the effect is due to 
take place from April 2020. 

RESOLVED that:

1. The Committee agreed to support the aim to reinvigorate The Cove, 
The Edge and Fairmead Community Centres by trialling initiatives from 
within existing resources.

2. The Committee agreed what is learnt from the proposed trials will be 
used to inform the broader corporate asset review being led by the 
Director for Growth and Regeneration.

26 Sports and Physical Activity Strategy
The Learning, Skills and Healthier Communities provided a report to:

Seek approval for the ‘Sports and Physical Activity Strategy’ for the Melton 
borough, developed in line with national priorities and key stakeholder consultation, 
whilst reflecting the Council’s ‘Corporate Priorities’ for local context.

Page 5



6 People Committee : 141118

Reference was made to Appendix A which sets out the Sport and Physical Activity 
Strategy for the Borough, without a Strategy there is a risk that the Council might 
not be addressing the right issues or prioritising resources effectively.   Appendix B 
, the government strategy recognises an active lifestyle leads to improved physical 
health and mental wellbeing.

Section 4 highlights how the adoption of the strategy will have a positive impact on 
the Council’s key People priorities.

Section 3.6, alongwith Appendix A highlights that physical activity varies through 
life stages but should be a natural part of everyday life.  Section 3.8 lists some of 
the key issues faced in the Borough in regard to childhood excess weight, adult 
inactivity and an ageing population.

Adoption of the Strategy will have a positive impact on all of the Council’s key 
People priorities. By working holistically we will ensure we will get the best possible 
value from our scare resources.  Our current funding has been reduced from £100K 
to £53k which currently will not put a strain on MBC budges, however, a strategy 
with identified purposes should maximise the opportunities for securing external 
funding to support initiatives or for opportunities for voluntary and community sector 
organisations to benefit such as through Lottery money by using the strategy as a 
basis for identifying areas of demand.

RESOLVED that:

1. The Committee approved the ‘Physical Activity and Sport Strategy’ as 
attached at Appendix A.

2. The Committee approved a delegation to the Deputy Chief Executive to 
authorise minor, future amendments to the strategy based on identified 
developments, learning or trends.

27 Urgent Business
There was no urgent business to discuss.

The meeting closed at: 7.50 pm

Chair

Page 6



Advice on Members’ Interests
COUNCIL MEETINGS - COMMITTEE MINUTES : DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Interests need not be declared at Full Council in relation to Committee Minutes which do not 
become the subject of debate at Full Council (i.e. Minutes referred to solely on a page by page 
basis when working through the Minutes of each Committee.)

An interest must be declared at Full Council as soon as it becomes apparent that a  relevant 
Committee Minute is to be debated – this applies even if an interest has been declared at 
Committee and is recorded in the Minutes of that Committee.  

PERSONAL AND NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS
If the issue being discussed affects you, your family or a close associate more than other 
people in the area, you have a personal and non-pecuniary interest.  You also have a personal  
interest if the issue relates to an interest you must register under paragraph 9 of the Members’ 
Code of Conduct.

You must state that you have a personal and non-pecuniary interest and the nature of 
your interest.  You may stay, take part and vote in the meeting.

PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS
If a member of the public, who knows all the relevant facts, would view your personal interest in 
the issue being discussed to be so great that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest and it affects your or the other person or bodies’ financial position or relates to any 
approval, consent, licence, permission or registration then you must state that you have a 
pecuniary interest, the nature of the interest and you must leave the room*.  You must not 
seek improperly to influence a decision on that matter unless you have previously obtained a 
dispensation from the Authority’s Governance Committee.  

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND OTHER INTERESTS
If you are present at any meeting of the Council and you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest in any matter to be considered or being considered at the meeting, if the interest 
is not already registered, you must disclose the interest to the meeting.  You must not 
participate in the discussion or the vote and you must leave the room.

You may not attend a meeting or stay in the room as either an Observer Councillor or *Ward 
Councillor or as a member of the public if you have a pecuniary or disclosable pecuniary 
interest*.  

BIAS 
If you have been involved in an issue in such a manner or to such an extent that the public are 
likely to perceive you to be biased in your judgement of the public interest (bias) then you 
should not take part in the decision-making process; you should leave the room.  You should 
state that your position in this matter prohibits you from taking part.  You may request 
permission of the Chair to address the meeting prior to leaving the room.  The Chair will need to 
assess whether you have a useful contribution to make or whether complying with this request 
would prejudice the proceedings.  A personal, pecuniary or disclosable pecuniary interest will 
take precedence over bias. 

In each case above, you should make your declaration at the beginning of the meeting or as 
soon as you are aware of the issue being discussed.*

*There are some exceptions – please refer to paragraphs 13(2) and 13(3) of the Code of 
Conduct

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



PEOPLE COMMITTEE

19 MARCH 2019

REPORT OF DIRECTOR FOR CORPORATE SERVICES 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING TO 31 JANUARY 2019

1.0      PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 To update the Committee on the progress of schemes within Capital Programme 
to 31 January 2019.

2.0.1 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Members note the progress made on the capital schemes for 2018-19 and 
year-end forecast as attached at Appendix A.

3.0 KEY ISSUES

3.1 Capital Programme Monitoring

3.1.1 Under the Capital Programme Project Appraisal System, monitoring of actual 
capital expenditure against authorised expenditure is undertaken on a regular 
basis and reported to the Senior Leadership Team. Appendix A gives details of 
the spending against budget for all schemes within this Committee up to 31 
January which is the latest available information at the agenda date.

3.1.2 The overall position for all capital schemes falling within this Committee is as set 
out below:

 
Allocated 
Funding 
2018/19 
Budget

Authorised 
Funding 
2018/19 

(Business 
Case 

Approved)

Actual 
Expenditure 

to 31 January
Year End 
Forecast

Year End 
Variance (-) 
Underspend

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
General 
Fund 413 413 204 418 5

3.1.3 To date expenditure of £204k has been incurred from the Disabled Facilities Grant 
of £409k. The work is undertaken by the Lightbulb Team at Blaby District Council. 
It should be noted that any underspend will need to be paid back or permission 
from Government to carry this forward.

3.1.4 Warm Homes Grant expenditure is projected to be £9k against a budget of £4k. 
The additional spend will be funded by Disabled Facilities Grant and the capital 
programme for future years has been updated accordingly.

4.0 POLICY AND CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Policy and corporate implications in relation to the current capital programme 
were addressed in setting the current year’s budget. Any policy and corporate 
implications for the proposed capital programme should be covered in any 
associated reports and forms linked to these schemes as they progress through 
the decision making process.

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



5.0 FINANCIAL AND OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The financial and resource implications for the proposed capital programme have 
been addressed within section 3.

 6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 The general power under Article 3 of the Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance) 
(England and Wales) Order 2002 enables housing authorities to give discretionary 
assistance, in any form, (e.g. grant, loan, equity release) for adaptations. There is 
no restriction on the amount of assistance that a local authority may provide for 
housing adaptations; discretionary assistance may be given in addition to, or as 
an alternative to, mandatory DFG.  For the proposed capital programme individual 
schemes could have links to legal issues. These should be covered in any 
associated reports and forms linked to these schemes as they progress through 
the decision making process.

7.0 COMMUNITY SAFETY

7.1 Individual schemes could have links to community safety issues. These should be 
covered in any associated reports and forms linked to those schemes as they 
progress through the decision making process.

8.0 EQUALITIES

8.1 Individual schemes could have links to equalities issues. These should be 
covered in any associated reports and forms linked to those schemes as they 
progress through the decision making process.

9.0 RISKS

9.1 There will be risks associated with each of the individual projects and these 
should be considered as the schemes progress through the decision making 
process. There is also the risk that the Council is unable to fund all of the 
schemes in the Capital Programme and therefore public expectations may not be 
met. 

10.0 CLIMATE CHANGE

10.1 Individual schemes could have links to climate change issues. These should be 
covered in any associated reports and forms linked to those schemes as they 
progress through the decision making process.

11.0 CONSULTATION

11.1 Consultation takes place between project managers and the Financial Accountant 
to determine the information to be included in Appendix A.  In addition, the capital 
programmes reports are submitted to the Council’s Programme Board. The extent 
to which consultation has been undertaken on individual schemes is set out in the 
associated project mandates.

12.0 WARDS AFFECTED

12.1 To varying degrees all wards are affected by capital schemes within this 
Committee

Contact Officer: Jaz Bassan
Date: 15 February 2019
Appendix: Appendix A - General Capital Programme Progress Report – January 2019
Background Papers: Oracle Financial Reports

Budget Holder Comments on Performance
Reference: X:\Cttee, Council & Sub Cttees\People\2018.19\190319/DG- Capital Prog. Monitoring- Apr 

18 to Jan 2019
Page 10



PEOPLE COMMITTEE APPENDIX A- GENERAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME
PROGRESS REPORT JANUARY 2019

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018/19 PROGRESS REPORT 

Project  Ref Grant
Funded

Business
Case

Approved
Budget for

Year

Actual April
18 to  Jan

19 Forecast
Variance (-) =
Underspend Comments

Y/N Y/N £000 £000 £000 £000

6410

Disabled
Facilities Grants
(Private Sector
Mandatory)

Y Y 409 204 409 0

Since October 2017 The Lightbulb Team at Blaby District
Council carry out the DFG process for all Leicestershire district
councils. They are in the process of providing a position on
expected spend to year end. It should be noted that any
underspend will need to be paid back or permission from Govt
to carry this forward

6412 Warm Homes
Grants N Y 4 0 9 5

Half of this budget is committed to date. It is expected that the
budget will be spent by year end. An over spend is forecast
which will be covered by the DFG grant.

TOTAL - GENERAL EXPENSES 413 204 418 5P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PEOPLE COMMITTEE

19TH MARCH 2019

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR FOR CORPORATE SERVICES

BUDGET MONITORING APRIL TO DECEMBER 2018

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To provide information on actual expenditure and income incurred on this 
Committee’s services compared to the latest approved budget for the period 
1st April 2018 to 31st December 2018. Note this is based on the old CSA 
service structure as it has been previously agreed that the financial monitoring 
reports for 2018/19 will be reviewed on this basis. Moving forward the 2019/20 
budget setting process has been based on the new People priorities. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 It is recommended that the financial position and year end forecast 
outlined in Appendix A for each of the services to 31st December 2018 be 
noted.

3.0 KEY ISSUES

3.1 As part of the Council’s budget monitoring procedures all budget holders are 
asked on a quarterly basis to provide details of service and financial 
performance. Copies of the budget holders’ returns are available for further 
information.

Overall Position

3.2 A summary of income and expenditure for services is attached at Appendix A. 
This information has previously been circulated to Members as part of the 
Members’ Newsletter.

3.3 A summary of the income and expenditure for  services compared to the 
approved budget at December 2018 is as follows:

Approved 
Budget @ 
Dec 2018

£

Apr to 
Dec 18 
Budget

£

Apr to Dec 
18 Net 
Expen-
diture

£

Year to date 
Variance 

(Under)/Over 
spend

£

Year End 
Forecast

£

Year End 
Variance 

(Under)/Over 
spend

£
General 
Expenses

1,643,040 799,139 673,317 (125,822) 1,594,127 (48,913)

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



3.4 The current year to date variance is an underspend of £125,822 of 
controllable expenditure. The year-end forecast is an underspend against 
latest budget of £48,913 for general expenses. 

Key Service Areas

3.5 The Key Service Areas report for those services within the remit of CSA 
previously is attached in Appendix B. This report is presented to the Strategic 
Leadership Team on a monthly basis and highlights the high risk budgets that 
were identified as part of the Council’s budget protocols. These budgets are 
reviewed with budget holders monthly. Those budgets which are more 
complex in nature are supported by more detailed analysis of the service 
usage that drives the costs. The latest version is attached which is the period 
to the end of February 2019.

Budget Variance Exception Reporting +/- £10k

3.6 As part of the budget monitoring process, variances are being promptly and 
proactively managed, facilitating more detailed reporting. Details of the more 
significant year end forecast variations +/- £10k (as shown in Appendix A) are 
also set out below:

3.6.1 Overspends

Wheels to Work £24,730 
The majority of the overspend relates the bad debt write offs £17k that will 
need to be undertaken as part of the scheme closure following the decision of 
the Place committee at its meeting on the 9th January 2019.

Community Service Grants £13,680
Melton have committed to provide funding to the Melton and District Money 
and Advice Centre (MADMAC) for the remainder of the year which was not 
budgeted for.

Public Conveniences
The Public Conveniences overspend is due to a delay in start on site which 
resulted in staff remaining in post  where they were expected to terminate in 
2017-18 and  redundancy costs, totalling £67.4k.. As a result of the delay of 
savings of £15.3k were made for Premises Related costs which offset some of 
the overspend. Finally there is a projected shortfall in income of £5.4k due to 
the delay in opening.  

Page 14



3.6.2 Underspends

Rent Rebates – HRA £30,227
Based on December estimates to DWP the forecast has been reviewed and 
outturn is expected projected to be better than budget due to the improved 
projections around the overpayment recovery position.

Rent Allowances £101,348
Based on December estimates provide to DWP the forecast has been 
reviewed and outturn is expected to be better than budget. As above the 
overpayment recovery for the aged debt position has resulted in an 
improvement in net contribution.

4.0 POLICY AND CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Policy and corporate implications were addressed in setting the current year’s 
budget. There are no further policy and corporate implications arising from this 
report.

5.0 FINANCIAL AND OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

5.1 All financial and resource implications have been addresses within section 3.

6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS/POWERS

6.1 As the report is exclusively concerned with financial matters, there are no 
direct legal implications arising from the report. Any individual revenue 
projects could have links to legal and procurement issues and early advice 
should be sought. These implications should be covered in any associated 
reports and forms lined to these projects as they progress through the 
decision making process.

7.0 COMMUNITY SAFETY

7.1 Community safety issues were addresses in setting the current year’s budget. 
There are no further community safety issues arising from this report.

8.0 EQUALITIES

8.1 Equalities issues were addressed in setting the current year’s budget. There 
are no further equalities issues arising from this report.

9.0 RISKS

9.1 The regularity of budget monitoring for each specific budget is based on the 
level of risk attributed to that budget. This is determined at the start of the 

Page 15



financial year and is reported to members as part of the Council Tax setting 
report.

10.0 CLIMATE CHANGE

10.1 There are no climate change issues arising from this report.

11.0 CONSULTATION

11.1 Budget Holders and the Service Accountant discuss the financial performance 
of the service accounts at the budget monitoring meetings arranged with 
reference to the current budget monitoring protocols.

12.0 WARDS AFFECTED

12.1 All wards are affected.

Contact Officer: Jasvinder Bassan
Date: 5th March 2019
Appendices: Appendix A – Summary of Income & Expenditure

Appendix B – Budget Monitoring – Key Services Areas
Background Papers: Oracle Financial Reports

Budget Holder comments on performance
Reference: X:\committee\committee,council\ People Committee\2018-19\19032019

Page 16



                      People Committee Appendix A
Summary of Income & Expenditure

April To December 2018

Original
Budget

Approved
Budget @

December 18

April -
December

Budget

April -
December

Net
Expenditure

Variance
Underspend (-)

Year End
Forecast

Year End
Variance

Underspend
(-)

£ £ £ £ £ £ £
General Expenses

1 Public Conveniences 36,150 36,150 29,882 92,748 62,866 93,383 57,233 L

2 Leisure Vision 31,500 30,160 4,865 15,230 10,365 31,960 1,800 L

3 Waterfield Leisure Pools -187,930 -189,450 -171,224 -154,120 17,104 -191,000 -1,550 L

4 Open Spaces 43,400 43,400 36,022 27,596 -8,426 43,450 50 L

5 Rent Rebates - Non HRA 520 520 1,740 -1,908 -3,648 2,920 2,400 L

6 Rent Rebates - HRA -55,110 -55,110 -41,333 -133,998 -92,665 -85,337 -30,227 J

7 Rent Allowances -31,070 -31,070 -23,303 -192,659 -169,357 -132,418 -101,348 J

8 Registered Social Landlords 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 K

9 Private Sector Housing Renewal 22,110 22,110 11,055 18,551 7,496 22,110 0 K

10 Homelessness 135,120 150,620 111,305 125,926 14,621 150,620 0 L

11 Other Private Housing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 K

12 Melton Lifeline -16,770 -24,090 -37,750 -40,704 -2,954 -24,090 0 J

13 Other Housing Services 0 3,000 2,250 0 -2,250 3,000 0 K

14 Customer Services 801,110 820,550 621,725 561,248 -60,477 818,100 -2,450 J

15 Community Service Grants 60,620 65,620 49,215 61,270 12,055 79,300 13,680 L

16 Community Safety 141,890 121,470 175,660 221,855 46,195 115,470 -6,000 J

17 Welland Wheels to Work -29,600 31,750 26,654 42,024 15,370 56,480 24,730 L

18 Council Tax Benefit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 K

19 Strategic Sports & Leisure Development 2,250 26,100 2,375 30,258 27,883 18,870 -7,230 L

20 Total Controllable Costs 954,190 1,051,730 799,139 673,317 -125,822 1,002,817 -48,913
21 Total Uncontrollable Costs 591,310 591,310 0 0 0 591,310 0

22 Total - General Expenses 1,545,500 1,643,040 799,139 673,317 -125,822 1,594,127 -48,913

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



BUDGET MONITORING- KEY SERVICE AREAS 2018-19 APPENDIX B
1 APRIL 2018 - 28 FEBRUARY 2019

Latest
Approved

Budget

Budget to
Period 8

Adjusted
Actual to
Period 8

<--------Variance---------> Projected
Full Year
Variance

Service Area Adverse Favourable
( ) =

Favourable
£ £ £ £ £ £

General Expenses
EXPENDITURE

Rent Rebates - Non HRA (Net) 520 1,933 (1,714) - 3,648 (2,060) J Improved projection due to overpayment recovery position.

Rent Rebates-HRA Properties (Net) (55,110) (45,925) (165,752) - 119,827 (29,167) JJ

Based on December  estimates to DWP forecast has been
reviewed and outturn is expected projected to be better than
budget. As above overpayment recovery position to be
reviewed.

Rent Allowance Payments (Net) (31,070) (25,892) (255,862) - 229,970 (97,210) JJ

Based on December estimates to DWP forecast has been
reviewed and outturn is expected projected to be better than
budget. As above overpayment recovery for aged debt
position has resulted in an improvement in net contribution.

Homelessness 152,120 128,180 141,495 13,315 - 1,900 L

Demand is continuing to remain high due to the changes in
legislation. Agency costs are £7k more than budget due to
long term sicknesses in the team in the first half of the year.
The overspend will be offset by virements from areas with
savings.

Customer Services 882,550 690,164 622,497 - 67,667 0 JJ

Salary savings due to vacant posts (including Customer
Experience Manager), secondments, salary sacrifice for
additional holiday pay and maternity leave. Additional DWP
funding confirmed in relation to UC against that expected
and other DWP grants received. Work is underway to
identify where additional DWP New Burdens income will be
used and if not committed will be reserved at y/e.

Wheels to Work 31,750 28,353 33,749 5,396 - 21,000 L

Adverse position due to additional redundancy costs which
has been partly offset from monies from sales of equipment.
Supplementary Estimates of £74k have already been
approved and processed. Finally £17k for bad debts has
been included.

Total Expenditure 18,711 421,112 (105,536)

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PEOPLE COMMITTEE

19 MARCH 2019

REPORT OF DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

BOTTESFORD YOUTH CLUB PETITION

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To consider the Bottesford Youth Club (BYC) petition received initially at Full 
Council on 13th February which has been referred to this committee in accordance 
with Procedure Rule 24. 

1.2 To update members on progress to date in relation to the Youth Club funding.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That a further report is given in six months with an update on discussions.

2.2 That members note the outcome of the Safer Melton Partnership meeting held 
on 8th March 2019 in relation to funding for Bottesford Youth Club.

3.0 KEY ISSUES

3.1 On 13th February 2019 at Full Council, the Mayor was presented with a petition 
from Bottesford Youth Club to request the Council continue funding the Youth 
Worker post. (Attached as Appendix A).

3.2 The petition contained 362 signatures and raised the following matters to be 
addressed:

 The Youth Worker plays an integral role in contributing to the success of the 
only Youth Club in the village;

 Removal of funding for the Youth Worker post risks closure of the Youth Club 
and consequential adverse impact of closure which includes:
 A significant amount of anti-social-behaviour in the villages will return;
 The Young People of Bottesford and Vale of Belvoir villages will be at an 

increased risk of being involved in “County Lines” drug dealing/taking and 
other serious organised crime;

 That the young people in the villages will not have a safe and fun 
environment to meet up, play, and talk about any issues affecting them.

 The petition also contained examples of how the club addresses a range of 
issues faced by young people and testimonials from volunteers and parents.

3.3 Melton Borough Council (MBC) has funded a Youth Worker post in Bottesford since 
2007. Youth services are typically a County Council responsibility and the Borough 
does not provide funding to any other youth provision in the area. In times of 
financial challenge, key stakeholders must work with the Council to find alternative 
funding streams and self sustaining options such as greater engagement with the 
Melton Community Lottery.

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



3.4 MBC has funded this provision in Bottesford since 2007 the cost has usually been 
covered by external monies received for most of the intervening period. For the last 
two years this has not happened and the whole cost has fallen on the Council, 
hence a review was initiated as part of the Budget for 2019/20.

3.5 As a result of this review, a proposal was put forward to members at Full Council to 
withdraw the support given to the Youth Club, consequently putting the post of the 
Youth Worker at risk of redundancy.

3.6 MBC have been keen to engage with both the Youth Club and the Parish Council to 
explore alternative sources of funding and how we could support with this. Whilst 
communication lines had been open in this respect, BYC started a petition to 
highlight the impact of potential closure on the youths and community of Bottesford.

3.7 The petition was presented to the Mayor at Full Council on 13th February 2019 with 
362 signatures. Whilst the number of signatories was below the level which 
required a more formal Council response the feelings and sentiment expressed of 
the importance to the local community were shared and recognised by the Council 
and therefore referred to the next meeting of the People Committee, in line with the 
procedure rule.

3.8 There was a discussion regarding the Youth Club as part of the budget setting item 
at the Full Council meeting on 13th February 2019. As part of that discussion there 
was agreement that funding would be provided for one more year, with the 
preference being for that money to be found through the Safer Melton Partnership. 
A meeting of that partnership is scheduled for Friday 8th March 2019 when this will 
be considered and the outcome will be reported verbally to this committee.

3.9 The offer of support from MBC to explore how this could be achieved remains as 
we look to enter into dialogue with both the Parish Council and BYC around their 
long term funding options.

4.0 POLICY AND CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS

4.1 This links with our organisational priority of becoming a more agile and commercial 
council, securing our financial future. Furthermore, it is in line with our objectives for 
the Melton Community Lottery to enable community groups to become self 
sustaining with reduced dependency on traditional local government grant funding.

5.0 FINANCIAL AND OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

5.1 BYC have just 2 supporters registered on their Melton Community Lottery page. 
However, 362 supporters signed the petition. If just 250 of those supporters signed 
up to just one weekly ticket each, it would generate revenue in excess of what is 
required to fund the Youth Worker.

5.2 A decision was taken during the revenue budget setting item at Full Council on 13th 
February 2019 to fund the Youth Club provision for one more year, preferably 
through external community safety funding but if not then from the corporate 
priorities reserve; thus ensuring the council delivers both the required ongoing 
savings, whilst providing sufficient time for the youth club to make alternative longer 
term funding arrangements. 

Page 22



6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS/POWERS

6.1 None identified.

7.0 COMMUNITY SAFETY

7.1 It is important to note that the value of the service is undisputed across all 
stakeholders. This includes the police who are of the view that this is a valuable 
service which contributes to lower levels of ASB in Bottesford. 

8.0 EQUALITIES

8.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment was completed at the time of the proposal to 
withdraw the funding support. However, this was not done on the basis of whether 
the Youth Club should continue but on the Council’s proposal not to fund the post. 
A full risk impact could not be done due to a lack of available information on the 
club’s finances which would have given an indication of whether they could 
continue to fund the post.

9.0 RISKS

9.1 .

Risk 
No

Risk Description

1 BYC unable to source funding for 2020/21
2 BYC unable to retain Youth Worker post if funding cannot be 

sourced
3

A Very High

B High

C Significant

D Low

E Very Low 1,2

L
I
K
E
L
I
H
O
O
D

F Almost
Impossible

Negligible
1

Marginal
2

Critical
3

Catastrophic
4

                IMPACT

Page 23



10.0 CLIMATE CHANGE

10.1 No issues relating to climate change.

11.0 CONSULTATION

11.1 Consultation has taken place with the Youth Worker whose role was directly 
affected by the proposals. Wider consultation continues to take place with BYC and 
the Parish Council with an early meeting scheduled to discuss non Melton Borough 
Council funding from 2020/21 onwards. 

12.0 WARDS AFFECTED

12.1 Bottesford Ward particularly as well as other wards across the Vale of Belvoir.

Contact Officer Aysha Rahman

Date: 19 March, 2019

Appendices : Appendix A – Petition - Bottesford Youth Club

Background Papers:

Reference : X:\Cttee, Council & Sub Cttees\People Committee\2018-19\5 190319

Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



PEOPLE COMMITTEE

19 MARCH 2019

REPORT OF DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

COMMUNITY GRANTS REVIEW

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The purpose of this report is to introduce the concept of adopting a new policy for 
considering community grants in future years.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Members to approve an initial consultation on future Community Grants 
Policy to take place in May/June 2019.

2.2 Members to note to a further report will be brought back to members in the 
new Council year to consider the results of the consultation and any 
proposed changes to the existing Policy.

3.0 KEY ISSUES

3.1 The Community Grants funding budget has been allocated for the 2019/20 
financial year. Elected Members have been involved in the decision making 
process regarding the allocation of grants as the Council continues to face 
ongoing budget pressures. The 2019/20 Community Grant funding allocation is set 
at £43,000 with no current plans to change this for 2020/21. 

3.2 The decision making process used by the Council during the recent funding review 
has highlighted the lack of clear demonstrable linkage to the Council’s Corporate 
Plan and key priorities.

3.3 To ensure Melton Borough Council (MBC) receives maximum social value for its 
residents, it is felt that a new approach is required for how this money is to be 
spent in the future. A review of how this is achieved is long overdue.

3.4 The Council’s corporate people priorities are currently based around:

1. Helping people fulfil their potential and achieve their ambitions;
2. Working with our partners to address vulnerability and tackle the root 

causes of social problems;
3. Building safe, happy and healthy communities; 
4. Focussing on our priority neighbourhoods, supporting people to overcome 

disadvantage and live well independently.

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



3.5 An outline of the principles that will shape the consultation questions are as 
follows:

 Inform stakeholders what the current process and value of community 
grants budget is and the rationale for change – Agree/Disagree;

 Inform stakeholders of the corporate priorities and evidence-based social 
value principles that will shape the proposed criteria for the bidding process 
– Agree/Disagree;

 Invite opinions on allocating/reviewing grants on an annual basis or the 
option to commit to longer term arrangement – up to 3 years - and the 
rationale for the preferred choice (subject always to budget availability);

 Invite opinions on the proposal to link applications for funding to fundraising 
activity including engagement with the Melton Community Lottery;

 Invite opinions on the potential to add value to the funding, such as through 
achievement of external match funding, partnership activity or additional 
volunteer hours;

 Inform rationale for providing evidence of financial accounts along with a 
breakdown of how the funding will be spent – Agree disagree.

This list is not exhaustive.

3.6 The outcome of the consultation will inform the process used which in turn will 
allow officers to make informed decisions when looking at future grants allocations.

3.7 It is not envisaged that grants will be automatically renewed each year as they 
have been previously. However, we do recognise that organisations may need to 
look for some certainty in their funding over the medium term and we will look to 
develop our thinking around this as part of the consultation process. We will also 
want to explore how we can best maximise the value of this £43k budget, such as 
for example attracting additional volunteer capacity or attracting external match 
funded cash investment.

3.8 When the consultation has completed we will bring a report back with firm 
recommendations which will include an implementation timetable that will provide 
clear information regarding any new process. 

3.9 As well as consultation with voluntary and community sector organisations we will 
also seek views of other key partners interested in these outcomes.

4.0 POLICY AND CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS

4.1 This proposal is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priorities and specifically to its 
People priority around working with our Partners to address vulnerability and 
tackle the root causes of social problems, building safe, happy and healthy 
communities.

5.0 FINANCIAL AND OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Recognising the pressures of diminishing resources, it is vital that the Council gets 
maximum value from the money that is available to support the voluntary and 
community sector.

Page 54



6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS/POWERS

6.1 There are no legal implications arising directly from the contents of this report but it 
is envisaged that legal support will be required in the creation of a new policy.

7.0 COMMUNITY SAFETY

7.1 A robust process of allocating grants against the Council’s priorities can only serve 
to reap benefits across all areas including community safety.

8.0 EQUALITIES

8.1 An equality impact assessment will need to be completed when drawing up the 
policy but again, it is envisaged a fair and transparent process will ensure the 
Council gives due regard to equalities considerations as part of the process and is 
consistent in its approach  

9.0 RISKS

9.1

Risk 
No

Risk Description

1 Community Groups eligible for funding may lack the expertise to 
put forward a strong bid.

2 Public and media backlash as a result of funding being 
withdrawn from longstanding and existing groups

A Very High

B High

C Significant 2

D Low 1

E Very Low

L
I
K
E
L
I
H
O
O
D

F Almost
Impossible

Negligible
1

Marginal
2

Critical
3

Catastrophic
4

                IMPACT

10.0 CLIMATE CHANGE

Page 55



10.1 No issues relating to climate change.

11.0 CONSULTATION

11.1 This is just a consultation exercise at this point in time.

12.0 WARDS AFFECTED

12.1 All Wards affected

Contact Officer Aysha Rahman and Ryan Ebdale

Date: 19 March, 2019

Appendices : None

Background Papers: Any documents that inform the report must be listed 
Any document listed must be available should a member of the public ask  to see it

Reference : X:\Cttee, Council & Sub Cttees\People Committee\2018-19\5 190319

Page 56



PEOPLE COMMITTEE

19 MARCH 2019

REPORT OF DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To update members regarding the future relationship between Melton Borough 
Council and the Melton branch of the Citizens Advice Bureau in light of the recent 
reduction to the annual MBC contribution through the Community Grants Budget 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That members note the current position regarding the Melton Citizens Advice 
Bureau.

3.0 KEY ISSUES

3.1 Melton Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) operated from the MBC Parkside office for 3 
days per week, utilising between 18 and 20 volunteers to support residents with 
advice and guidance on a range of issues, including employment advice, 
homelessness and housing advice and money management.

3.2 The CAB also operates a money advice service which is funded centrally through 
Leicestershire County Council, yet provides specific money advice on a referral 
basis to residents in the Melton Borough.

3.3 Members have recently authorised a £17k reduction in CAB funding for the 2019/20 
financial year, taking the annual contribution from £44k to £27k.

3.4 Subsequent discussions with the CAB have covered aspects of service delivery, in 
the context of the £17k reduction in funding. Although we are yet to receive any 
formal notification or model of how the service will operate from 1 April 2019, 
discussions have covered the following issues:

 A reduction in the overall desk space available to the CAB at Parkside
 A subsequent reduction in the overall CAB offer in Melton
 Potential use of Children’s Centres and Community Centres through the 

delivery of a more ‘outreach’ based offer

3.5 The Council acknowledges that with any reduction in the service offered by the 
CAB comes a reduction in the rental income derived from their presence in 
Parkside. 

3.6 To allow the CAB additional time to formulate and present their alternative delivery 
plans, the Council has agreed to sustain the current payment levels for Q1 2019/20. 
The CAB has been offered support from officers to formulate a mutually beneficial 
service, including the long term retention of the 20 CAB volunteers and sustainment 
of the valued advice provided by the Melton CAB.

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



3.7 The CAB has committed to presenting officers with a future plan by the end of April 
2019.

4.0 POLICY AND CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The attached policies link into the following Corporate Priority:
• Helping people fulfil their potential and achieve their ambitions.
• Work with our partners to address vulnerability and tackle the root causes of 

social problems, building safe, happy and healthy communities.
• Focussing on our priority neighbourhoods, support people to overcome 

disadvantage and live well independently

5.0 FINANCIAL AND OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The financial implications of the proposed changes to Melton CAB service provision 
are outlined in the report

6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS/POWERS

6.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from the report but it is envisaged that 
legal support will be required to deal with ongoing provisions in relation to 
leases/licences.

7.0 COMMUNITY SAFETY

7.1 No implications are expected

8.0 EQUALITIES

8.1 An equalities Impact Assessment has been completed for the initial removal of the 
£17k funding from the CAB. An updated EIA will be provided when the full impact of 
the proposal has been determined through the receipt of a future plans document 
from the CAB.

Page 58



9.0 RISKS

9.1

Risk 
No

Risk Description

1 Negative media coverage as a result of the proposed changes
2 Impact upon local residents should the CAB reduce their 

presence at Parkside
3

A Very High

B High

C Significant 1, 2

D Low

E Very Low

L
I
K
E
L
I
H
O
O
D

F Almost
Impossible

Negligible
1

Marginal
2

Critical
3

Catastrophic
4

                IMPACT

10.0 CLIMATE CHANGE

10.1 None

11.0 CONSULTATION

11.1 No consultation with the public has been undertaken as a result of the proposed 
changes, however consultation with the CAB continues.

12.0 WARDS AFFECTED

12.1 All wards affected.

Contact Officer Albert Wilson

Date: 7 March 2019

Appendices : None

Background Papers: None

Reference : X : Committees\?

Page 59



Page 60


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Declarations of interest
	4 Capital Programme Monitoring to 31 January 2019
	Appendix A

	5 Budget Monitoring April-December 2018
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	6 Bottesford Youth Club Petition
	Appendix A

	7 Community Grant Review
	8 Citizens Advice Bureau

